
 1 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 
 

City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 
317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 

 
 

MISSION STATEMENT  
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 
 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

 Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
Robert Bergman, Council Member   Evans Phelps, Vice Mayor 
Terri Andersen, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Council Member 

 
The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 
each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 
local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  
Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 
City, CA during normal business hours. 
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 
questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 
opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 
YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 
you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   
 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PROCLAMATION:   Prostate Cancer Awareness Month – September 2015 
 
PRESENTATION:    
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 
 



 2 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 
the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 
jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  
Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 
certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 
Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for separate discussion and action. 

 
A. Subject:  Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City Supervisory Unit Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) – New Classification of Public Works Superintendent 
Recommendation: Review and approve Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City 
Supervisory Unit Memorandum of Understanding for the new classification of Public 
Works Superintendent. 
 

B. Subject:  Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s 
Association Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Uniform Allowance for Full-
Time Position of the Community Service Officer (CSO) 
Recommendation: Review and approve Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City 
Miscellaneous Employee’s Association Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
authorizing expenses for required CSO uniform clothing to be reimbursed up to an 
annual amount of $500. 
 

C. Subject: Proposition 84, Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
Implementation Grant Agreement 4600009716 Amendment No. 1 
Recommendation: Review and authorize the Mayor to sign Proposition 84, 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant Agreement 
4600009716 Amendment No. 1. 

   
D. Subject: Street Closure Request – Nevada City Chinese New Year Parade and 

Festival – February 21, 2016 
Recommendation: Review and authorize Nevada City Chinese New Year Parade 
and Festival street closure request per application. 

 
 



 3 

E. Subject: Street Closure Request – Indigenous Peoples Days – October 9, 2015 
Recommendation: Review and authorize Indigenous Peoples Days street closure 
request per application. 
 

F. Subject: Accounts Payable – June 2015 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 

 
G. Subject:  Fire Activity Report – May, June, July and August 2015 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 

H. Subject: Agreement with MunicipalCMS LLC for Website Reconstruction Services 
Recommendation: Pass a Motion 1) approving agreement with MunicipalCMS LLC 
for website reconstruction purposes for an amount not to exceed $12,470, and 2) 
annual maintenance, support and hosting totaling $2,495 per year for years two 
through five for a total not to exceed $22,450.  
 

I. Subject: Award of Providence Mine Remediation Project 
Recommendation: Award the Providence Mine Remediation Project to Hansen Bros. 
Enterprises in the amount of $149,420 and authorize the Mayor to sign. 
 

      4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 

A. City Council Meeting – July 22, 2015 
B. City Council Meeting – August 26, 2015 
 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Subject: An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City adding Chapter 15.06 to Title 15 

of the Nevada City Municipal Code Relating to Expedited and Streamlined 
Permitting Procedures for Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems 
Recommendation: Hold hearing, waive reading of entire ordinance, and approve 
first reading for adoption. 

 
7. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject: Proposed Rezoning of Property located on Pello Lane, Nevada City, to add 

a “PD” Planned Development overlay to the existing “R2-AN-SC” zoning (Multiple-
family/Annexed/Scenic Corridor) on said property, which contains 2.36 acres.  
(Second Reading) 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2015-XX rezoning the property by adding the 
“PD” Planned Development overlay as approved by the Planning Commission in 
2006. 

 
 



 4 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject: Proposed Utah Phillips Peace Bench 

Recommendation: Discuss proposal and, if desired, refer to Planning Commission 
for review of options. 
 

B. Subject: Update on State and Local Transportation Infrastructure Funding 
Recommendation: Receive and file. 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the September 
9, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted September 4, 2015 at the office of the City of 
Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
Signed this September 4, 2015 at Nevada City, California 
 
 
__________________________________, Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 
Long Range Calendar 

 
September 7, 2015 Labor Day 
September 9, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting (Admissions Day-floating holiday) 
September 23, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 
October 12, 2015  Columbus Day 
October 14, 2015  Regular City Council Meeting 
October 28, 2015  Regular City Council Meeting 
 
NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 
 
NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 
while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City Supervisory Unit Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) – New Classification of Public Works Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City Supervisory 
Unit Memorandum of Understanding for the new classification of Public Works Superintendent. 
   
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
On August 14, 2015, the Department of Public Works Director retired from the City of Nevada 
City after 20 years.  On June 10, 2015, City Council discussed a transition plan that included 
the Public Works Supervisor being reclassified to the Public Works Superintendent to include 
increased job responsibility consisting of supervision and management for all field operations 
and special events and added administrative responsibilities (previously performed by the 
Public Works Director). 
 
The attached amendment outlines the addition of this classification and recommended salary 
and benefits to be provided by the City for the position of Public Works Superintendent. The 
proposed annual salary range will be $69,409.60 - $84,372.28 and is a 5 step scale.  The 
recommendation is to reclassify current Public Works Supervisor to the Superintendent 
position at Step C, $76,528.20 annually which is a 7% increase from the current salary. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Public Works Superintendent position is included in the June 10th Council-approved Public 
Works Transition Plan, which is projected to reduce General Fund expenditures approximately 
$14,000 for fiscal year 15/16. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 Amendment No. 2 to Nevada City Supervisory Unit MOU – New Classification of Public 

Works Superintendent 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY  
SIDE LETTER NO. 2 TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager / Finance Director  

 
SUBJECT:   Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City Supervisory Unit Side Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU) – New classification of Public Works Superintendent 
 
DATE:   September 9, 2015 
 
 
Amendment No. 2 to the MOU agreement effective July 1, 2014 between the City of Nevada City and the 
Nevada City Supervisory Unit to reclassify the Public Works Supervisor to the Public Works Superintendent to 
include increased job responsibility consisting of supervision and management for all field operations and 
special events and added administrative responsibilities (previously performed by the Public Works Director).  
 
The following outlines the recommended salary to be provided by the City for the position of Public Works 
Superintendent. The proposed annual salary range will be $69,409.60 - $84,372.28 and is a 5 step scale. It is 
recommended to reclassify current Public Works Supervisor to the Superintendent position at Step C, 
$76,528.20 annually which is a 7% increase from the current salary. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Mark Prestwich, City Manager     Date 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Catrina Olson, Asst City Manager     Date 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Peter Schack        Date 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Dawn Zydonis        Date 



 
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – Uniform Allowance for Full-Time Position of 
the Community Service Officer (CSO) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve Amendment No. 2 to the Nevada City 
Miscellaneous Employee’s Association Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) authorizing 
expenses for required CSO uniform clothing to be reimbursed up to an annual amount of $500. 
   
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: The attached amendment refers to Miscellaneous 
Employee’s Association MOU, Article VII Clothing Allowance regarding employees required to 
wear uniforms. The CSO full-time position requires a uniform and should be included to Article 
VII for continuity. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
$500/annually to the Police Department 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 Amendment No. 2 to Nevada City Miscellaneous Employee’s Association MOU – Full 

Time Community Service Officer Uniform Allowance. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY  
AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 
TO:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
FROM: Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager / Finance & Administration 

 
SUBJECT:   Miscellaneous Employee’s Association-Amendment No. 2 – Uniform Allowance for full 

time position of the Community Service Officer (CSO)  
 
DATE:   September 9, 2015 
 
 
Amendment No. 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) effective July 1, 2014 between the 
City of Nevada City and the Nevada Miscellaneous Employee’s Association regarding Article VII – 
Clothing Allowance as follows: 
 

 For the Community Service Officer, all expenses for required uniform clothing will be 
reimbursed by the department up to an annual amount of $500. 

 
 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Mark Prestwich, City Manager     Date 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Catrina Olson, Asst City Manager     Date 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
William Highsmith       Date 
 
 
______________________________   _______________ 
Rebecca Schaeffer       Date 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Proposition 84, Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) 
Implementation Grant Agreement 4600009716 Amendment No. 1 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize the Mayor to sign Proposition 84, 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant Agreement 
4600009716 Amendment No. 1. 
   
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  
In July 2013, the City of Nevada City entered into an agreement with the State of 
California Department of Water Resources for a Proposition 84 IRWM Grant to fund 
water projects for the City of Nevada City, the Town of Washington, Placer County 
Water Agency, and American Rivers.  The City has been working diligently to complete 
projects for the City and the Town of Washington and, in the course of this work, 
amendments to the original agreement are required to continue moving forward with the 
grant tasks. 
 
Attached is the IRWM Grant Agreement with the modifications identified with strike outs.  
The changes to the agreement are as follows; 

 Agreement: The term of the agreement has been extended (section 2) to 
December 31, 2016. 

 Agreement: Progress reporting is changed from monthly to quarterly 
(section 17). 

 Exhibit A: The work plan for project 17 (administration) is modified. 
 Exhibit C: The summary budget and the budgets for projects 1, 5, 9, 10, 

11, 12, 13, 15, 16 and 17 are modified. 
 Exhibit E: Progress reporting is change from monthly to quarterly. 

  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 Proposition 84 Grant Agreement 4600009716 Amendment #1 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/




















































REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 
September 9, 2015 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Nevada City Chinese New Year Parade and Festival Street Closure 
Request – February 21, 2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize Nevada City Chinese New Year 
Parade and Festival street closure request per application. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The Chinese New Year Parade and Festival 
event is a street festival with a parade celebrating the Chinese New Year 
sponsored by Community Asian Theatre of the Sierra (CATS). 
 
The applicant for the Chinese New Year Parade and Festival is proposing that it 
take place on Union Street between Commercial Street and Commercial and 
Coyote Streets; Commercial Street between Broad and Union Streets; Main 
Street between Commercial Street; Pine Street between Commercial Street; and 
York Street between Commercial Street. The proposed event hours are Noon to 
4:00pm. Set-up is to begin at 9:00am and breakdown to be completed 4:00pm. 
 
A summary of the specific event characteristics are included in the application 
packet.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
 Street Closure/Special Event Application 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/






















































REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 
September 9, 2015 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Indigenous Peoples Day Street Closure Request – October 9, 2015 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and authorize Indigenous Peoples Day street 
closure request per application. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The Indigenous Peoples Day event is a 
ceremonial and located at the Bark house. This is an annual event entertains 
with an opening ceremony, Elder speakers, tribal dignitaries and community 
leaders. It has flutes, drums, Round Dance. 
 
The applicant for the Indigenous Peoples Day is proposing that it take place on 
Union Street between Broad Street and Commercial Street. The proposed event 
hours are 5:30pm to 7:00pm. Set-up is to begin at 5:00pm and breakdown to be 
completed 7:30pm. 
 
A summary of the specific event characteristics are included in the application 
packet.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
 Street Closure/Special Event Application 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/














































































REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 
September 9, 2015 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Agreement with MunicipalCMS LLC for Website Reconstruction 
Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass a Motion 1) approving agreement with 
MunicipalCMS LLC for website reconstruction purposes for an amount not to 
exceed $12,470, and 2) annual maintenance, support and hosting totaling $2,495 
per year for years two through five for a total not to exceed $22,450.  
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City’s website is built on an outdated 
version of Drupal that lacks responsive design for mobile devices. The content 
management system is very complex and not user friendly; currently only three 
staff have familiarity with the product. Further, Spiral Internet, which hosts the 
website, recently advised the City that they have transitioned to a new server that 
will not easily accommodate the existing City website, resulting in new charges to 
the City.  
 
In response to these challenges and a desire to improve customer service and 
website functionality, funding was incorporated into the Fiscal Year 2015/16 
budget to reconstruct the City website. This will also facilitate build-out of the 
planned Digital Business Portal called for in the NCFORWARD economic plan.  
 
In May, the City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) soliciting website design 
and construction services. The City received eight proposals and conducted 
interviews and live demonstrations of content management systems with the 
three highest-rated firms.  
 
MunicipalCMS LLC was selected as the preferred vendor because of the 
competitiveness of their price, extreme ease of their back-end content 
management system, and reputation as a service provider to scores of local 
governments. Development of the new website is anticipated to take 
approximately four months. MunicipalCMS LLC will provide hosting and 24/7 
technical support at no additional charge.  
 
Features of the new website will include: 

• E-notifications to help residents and visitors stay informed about meetings, 
events, news, etc. 

• A bid center to publicize open bids and Requests for Proposals 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


• Americans with Disabilities Act features and compliance 
• Built-in mapping tool  
• Emergency Alert communication tool 
• Daily backup and recovery, and hosting at a data center with redundant 

connections 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding was incorporated into the Fiscal Year 2015/16 
budget to reconstruct the City website. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

 
 Proposed Agreement with MunicipalCMS LLC 

 



 

www.MunicipalCMS.com              19570 County Line Road, Smithville, MO 64089 816-885-1421 

Website Development Agreement 
 
Client Name:  City of Nevada City, California 
Contact Name:  Mark Prestwich 
Contact Title: City Manager 
Address: 317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA 95959 
Phone: (530) 265-2496 
Email: mark.prestwich@nevadacityca.gov 
Client Domain: www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
 
The above-named client (referred to herein as "client") has engaged MunicipalCMS LLC, a limited liability company in 
the state of Missouri, as an independent contractor for the specific purpose of designing an internet site. 
 
1. SERVICES RENDERED. MunicipalCMS LLC agrees to perform website services as defined by the attached 
Statement of Work. All services described in the Statement of Work are to be performed by MunicipalCMS LLC 
and/or its contractors in accordance with the most commonly accepted standards and practices of the web services 
industry. 
 
2. COST. The development services described in this contract and the first 12 months of hosting, software license, 
and technical support shall be billed and paid at the rate of $12,470.00. Content Management System license, 
website hosting, and technical support in subsequent years shall be billed at the rate of $2,495.00 per year. 
 
3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. The terms and conditions set forth in this document constitute the sole agreement 
between MunicipalCMS LLC and the client regarding this web site. Any additional work not specified in this contract 
must be authorized in writing. Should the client desire additional programming and design beyond the original 
attached Statement of Work, the client agrees to pay MunicipalCMS LLC at an additional rate of $125 per hour. 

 
4. PERFORMANCE. MunicipalCMS LLC agrees to submit three drafts of the web site no later than 14 days from the 
date the Getting Started Worksheet is submitted by the client. MunicipalCMS LLC agrees to provide the client at least 
14 business days to submit comments and select the draft which will become the basis for the web site. The final web 
site completion date shall not be in excess of 90 days from the date client provides all content for which they are 
responsible, as outlined in the attached Statement of Work. 
 
5. PAYMENT. One-half of the total first year fee is due within 30 days of contract signing. The remaining half of the 
first year fee is due upon the launch of the site. The Client agrees to pay MunicipalCMS LLC for all outstanding 
charges within 30 days of each invoice. Client agrees to provide payment in full within 30 days of completion of the 
services described in the attached Statement of Work.  
 
6. LICENSE AGREEMENT. This Agreement is not a sale of the Municipal Content Management System and its 
associated applications and modules (the Proprietary System). MunicipalCMS LLC agrees to provide the client with a 
revocable, non-transferable and non-exclusive account to access the Municipal Content Management System; and 
grants the client a revocable, non-sub licensable, non-transferable and non-exclusive right to use the Municipal 
Content Management System during the period of this agreement. The Municipal Content Management System is 
proprietary to MunicipalCMS LLC, and protected by intellectual property laws and international intellectual property 
treaties. Client shall not license, sublicense, sell, resell, transfer, assign, distribute or otherwise commercially exploit 
or make the Proprietary System available in any way to any person other than Client’s employees; modify or make 
derivative works based upon the Proprietary System; create Internet links to the Proprietary System or mirror any 
functionality on any other server or wireless or Internet-based device; or reverse engineer or access the Proprietary 
System in order to (a) build a competitive product or service, (b) build a product using similar ideas, features, 
functions or graphics of the Proprietary System, or (c) copy any ideas, features, functions or graphics of the 
Proprietary System. The client’s access to, and use of the Municipal Content Management System is licensed and 
not sold. Cancellation of client’s annual contract with MunicipalCMS LLC will also result in the immediate termination 
of the client’s Municipal Content Management System license as described above. 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

www.MunicipalCMS.com              19570 County Line Road, Smithville, MO 64089 816-885-1421 

7. WARRANTIES AND LIABILITY. MunicipalCMS LLC does not warrant that the functions of the web site will meet 
the client’s expectations of site traffic or resulting business. In no event will MunicipalCMS LLC or its subcontractors 
be liable to the client or any third party for any lost profits, lost savings or other incidental, consequential or special 
damages arising out of the operation of or inability to operate these web pages, even if MunicipalCMS LLC has been 
advised of the possibility of such damages. 
 
8. TRADEMARKS & COPYRIGHTS. The client represents to MunicipalCMS LLC and unconditionally guarantees that 
any elements of text, graphics, photos, designs, trademarks, or other artwork furnished to MunicipalCMS LLC for 
inclusion in web pages are owned by the client, or that the client has permission from the rightful owner to use each 
of these elements, and will hold harmless, protect, and defend MunicipalCMS LLC, its partners, employees, and 
agents from and against any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, losses, fines, liabilities, damages, and 
expenses including attorney’s fees of any kind, without limitation, arising from the use of such elements furnished by 
the client. Copyright to the assembled work of web pages produced by MunicipalCMS LLC is owned by 
MunicipalCMS LLC. Upon payment of the full development fee, all rights owned by MunicipalCMS LLC as to the 
design, graphics, and text in this web site transfer to the client. Rights to source code, work-up files, databases, and 
computer programs are specifically not transferred to the client, and remain the property of their respective owners. 
MunicipalCMS LLC and its subcontractors retain the right to display graphics and other web design elements as 
examples of their work in their respective portfolios. 
 
9. LAWS AFFECTING ELECTRONIC COMMERCE. From time to time governments enact laws and levy taxes and 
tariffs affecting Internet electronic commerce. The client agrees that the client is solely responsible for complying with 
such laws, taxes, and tariffs, and will hold harmless, protect, and defend MunicipalCMS LLC and its subcontractors 
from any claim, suit, penalty, tax, or tariff arising from the client's exercise of Internet electronic commerce. 
 
10. LITIGATION. Any disputes arising from this contract will be litigated in Nevada County, California. This 
Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 
11. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. If the client halts work and applies by registered letter to MunicipalCMS LLC, 
19570 County Line Road, Smithville, MO 64089, to cancel this agreement, work completed to that point shall be billed 
and paid at the hourly rate stated above. Either party may terminate the annual agreement at the end of the contract 
term by providing the other party with 60 days prior notice. In the event that neither party gives such notice prior to 
the end of the initial or any subsequent term, the annual agreement will automatically be renewed for an additional 
contract term. 
 
 
 
Undersigned hereby agree to the terms, conditions and stipulations of this agreement on behalf of his or her 
organization or business. This Agreement and the accompanying Statement of Work constitute the entire 
understanding of the parties. Any changes or modifications thereto must be in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date indicated below: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________ Date ________________ 
City of Nevada City   Title  
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________ Date _9/2/2015_________ 
Toni Oesterle, Director of Client Services, MunicipalCMS LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

www.MunicipalCMS.com              19570 County Line Road, Smithville, MO 64089 816-885-1421 

Statement of Work 

 
Scope of Work 

MunicipalCMS LLC will develop an internet site for the client. The site will be a quick loading, customer-focused 
website with contemporary and responsive design features that perform effectively across multiple platforms. A 
consistent graphical theme will flow throughout the site. Graphic design, programming, and support for the site will be 
provided in a cost-effective and timely manner.  
 

• Domain Name - The client is responsible for registering and renewing the domain name of their choice. 

• Design Process - MunicipalCMS LLC will create three website design concepts for the client’s new home 
page. Once the client has selected the design of its choice, the work-in-progress will be posted to the 
MunicipalCMS web site where client personnel can visit and review the site as it is developed. 

• Site Content – MunicipalCMS will migrate up to 50 pages of information and 125 documents from the 
client’s existing web site. The information will be organized and arranged in a manner that is easy to 
understand and navigate. The client will be responsible for updating content, creating additional pages, and 
maintaining the content once the site is launched.  

• Graphic Design - All graphic design work for the site such as stock images, navigation buttons and 
background images will be included in this contract. The client is encouraged to provide their own local 
photography for inclusion in the site.  

• Municipal Content Management System – MunicipalCMS LLC will integrate the Municipal Content 
Management System into the new site. The client will be granted a renewable annual license to use the 
System to update and maintain the website. Updates and enhancements to the Municipal Content 
Management System will be provided at no extra cost to the client. Features, which are subject to change, 
include: 

• Automated e-notifications  
• Bid posting tool 
• Calendar of events 
• Mapping capabilities with Google maps 
• Document storage center  
• Emergency Alert tool  
• Image Library  
• Online Forms  
 

• Online News Center 
• RSS integration 
• Site-wide search tool 
• Request Center 
• iframes for inclusion of third-party web applications 
• User settings to limit administrative privileges 
• Analytical statistics via Google Analytics 

 
• Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance – The Municipal Content Management System will 

provide ADA accessible features for the website including: 

• Clickable menu items 

• Dynamic menus on subpages 

• Self-updating site map  

• Ability to label data tables with row and column headings  

• Optional links to bypass navigation links 

• Test-equivalents (alt-tags) automatically assigned to all images 

• Descriptive HTML tags for form elements 

• Hosting –Hosting for up to 10 GB of data with a 99.9% uptime, generator backup power supply, and 
redundant internet connections and daily data backups. 

• Technical Support – Technical support will be provided by phone and email 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week at no additional charge. After-hours support will be provided for emergencies only. 

• Training – Two days of onsite training will be provided at no extra charge. Instruction will be provided for 
both the day-to-day use of the Municipal Content Management System as well as administrative functions.  

 

 









 
 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
DRAFT SUMMARY MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JULY 22, 2015 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick Links and 
Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  Select the meeting date 
and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  The agenda listed directly below the video screen has bullet points 
which you can select to get to a specific agenda item.  Click on the desired agenda item which will enable you 
view the meeting from that point forward.  Please contact Deputy City Clerk, Corey Shaver for websites 
assistance (530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, Contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
 
Regular meeting called to order at 6:30 PM 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Council Members Phelps, Strawser, Bergman, Mayor Andersen, Vice Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PROCLAMATION: 
None 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Park & Recreation Supervisor Zydonis presented Certificates of Appreciation to the swimming pool staff. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR – PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
 
1.  REORGANIZATION OF CITY COUNCIL 
 
A.  Confirmation of Mayor Pro Tem Selection to be Mayor 
 
B.  Nominations and Selection of Vice Mayor 
 
2.   COUNCILMEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
A.  Subject:  Review & Discussion of Code of Conduct – Jennifer Ray 
 
B.  Subject: 2015 AMGEN Tour of California Expenses – Evans Phelps 
 
Public Comment - 
 
Action:  Motion by Evans, to direct Mark and Catrina to look at the Economic Development line items and see what kind 
of help that we can make towards this debt that was incurred by the community to fund the AMGEN tour; Council Member 
Bergman added – and to report back what possibilities there may be without a commitment at this point to spending 
anything, just to identify in order to get this approved and if it’s not acceptable to Jennifer and Terri, than I second the 
motion. 
(ROLL CALL VOTE: AYES – Phelps, Bergman; NOES – Andersen, Ray; RECUSED – Strawser) 
 
 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Regular Meeting of the City Council of Nevada City 
July 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 
 
A.  Subject:   Records Retention Policy Management Guidelines 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution 2015-36 approving the updated City Records Management Guidelines, Version 
2006. 
 
B.  Subject:  Notice of Completion for Nimrod Street Sewer Line Project 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution 2015-37 approving a Notice of Completion for a sewer line replacement on Nimrod 
Street and authorize Mayor to sign. 

 
C.  Subject:  Nevada City Police Department Vehicle Replacement 
Recommendation:  Receive as information a quote and sale contract from Folsom Chevrolet for the purchase of a 
replacement vehicle for the Nevada City Police Department. 
 
D.  Subject:  Nevada City Supervisory Unit Amendment No. 1 - Cell Phone Allowance 
Recommendation:  Review and Approve 
 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Strawser to approve Items A, B, C and D as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 
4.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A.  Regular City Council Meeting – July 08, 2015 
 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Phelps to approve July 8, 2015 minutes as amended. 
(Approved 3 – 0, Abstain Strawser, Ray) 
 
5.  DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
A.  Subject:  Paid Sick Leave Policy Pursuant to AB 1522 for Part-time, Temporary and Seasonal Employees 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Bergman to approve Resolution No. 2015-38 Adopting a Paid Sick Leave 
Policy Pursuant to AB 1522 for Part-Time, Temporary and Seasonal Employees and Establishing the Accrual Method 
known as AB 2245 and the Minimum Paid Sick Leave Usage Increment. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARING: 
None 
 
7.  OLD BUSINESS: 
None 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A.  Subject: Nevada City Farm to Table Street Closure Request 
 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Bergman to authorize the “Farm to Table” street closure request per the 
application presented with the terrazo lighting to be left hanging up, but turned off after the event until we have the lighting 
discussion on the August 12th or August 26th City Council meeting. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting of the City Council of Nevada City 
July 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
B.  Subject:  Simplification and Modernization of Nevada City’s Business License Tax 
 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Strawser to direct to staff to prepare for City Council consideration an ordinance, 
subject to voter approval, to simplify and modernize the City’s business license tax. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
9.  CORRESPONDENCE: 
None 
 
10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
National Night Out 
 
11.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
- Fire Station 54 is operating at full staff. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Phelps to adjourn – 8:17 PM 
(Approved 5 – 0) 

 
 
___________________________________ 

        Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
___________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



Regular City Council Meeting – August 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
SUMMARY MINUTES 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF AUGUST 26, 2015 
 

 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to Quick 
Links and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the screen.  
Select the meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, please 
contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PROCLAMATION:    
 
PRESENTATION:    
 
1.  BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR-PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevdacityca.gov. 
 
2.  COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevdacityca.gov. 
 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 
 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless, 
before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the Council, City staff or the public 
request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and action. 
 
A.  Subject:  Award of Measure S Paving Contract  
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution No. 2015-39 to Award the Measure S Paving Contract to Central 
Valley Engineering and Asphalts, Inc. of Roseville, CA in the amount of $426,705 plus $50,000 
contingencies. 
 
B.  Subject:  Acceptance of Unrestricted Anonymous Donation of $5,000 
Recommendation:  Pass a Motion accepting unrestricted anonymous donation of $5,000. 
 
C.  Subject:  Declaring Three City Vehicles as Surplus 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution No. 2015-40 declaring the 2008 Ford Crown Victoria, 2001 Dodge 
Durango SUV, and 1985 GMC Sierra 1500 as surplus property and authorize the Assistant City Manager 
to salvage the surplus property by direct sale to BidCal.com Online Auctions. 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevdacityca.gov/
http://www.nevdacityca.gov/


Regular City Council Meeting – August 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
D.  Subject: Quarterly Sales Tax Update – 1st Quarter 2015 
Recommendation:  Receive and File 
 
E.  Subject: Implementation of Land Management Plan for Hirschman’s Pond – Sierra Nevada 
Conservancy Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
Recommendation: Authorize Mayor to sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sierra 
Streams Institute (SSI) and the City of Nevada City Affirming Rights to Access and Responsibilities for the 
Hirschman’s Pond Forest Health Project. 
 
F.  Subject: Creation of Land Management Plan for Sugarloaf Mountain – Sierra Nevada Conservancy 
Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
Recommendation: Authorize Mayor to sign a letter of support for Sierra Streams Institute (SSI) to apply 
for funding to create a Land Management Plan for the Sugarloaf and Old Airport property. 
 
G.  Subject:  Bad Debt Write-Off for Fiscal Year 2014-15 
Recommendation:  Pass Resolution No. 2014-41 Approving Bad Debt Write-Off for Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Phelps to approve Consent Items A, B, C, D, E, F, and G as 
presented. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
   
4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 
City Council Meeting – August 12, 2015 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Bergman to approve the August 12, 2015 minutes as 
amended. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
5.  DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
None 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
A.  Subject: Public Hearing to Consider Proposed Rezoning of Property located on Pello Lane, Nevada 
City, to add a “PD” Planned Development overlay to the existing “R2-AN-SC” zoning (Multiple-
family/Annexed/Scenic Corridor) on said property, which contains 2.36 acres – Second Reading 
 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Andersen to adopt Ordinance 2015-08 – read title only. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
7.  OLD BUSINESS: 
 
A.  Subject: Consider a 15-year Extension of the Current Development Agreement between the City of 
Nevada City and Kenmawr-Nevada City LLC and Nevada City Tech Center, LLC (Second Reading) 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Andersen to adopt Ordinance No.  2015-08 Approving an 
Extension of the Existing Development Agreement Between the City of Nevada City and Kanmaawr-
Nevada City, LLC and Campus Properties, LLC Owners of Property on Providence Mine Road – read title 
only. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
 
 
 



Regular City Council Meeting – August 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS: 
 
A.  Subject: City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
 
Action:   Motion by Strawser, seconded by Andersen to approve the appointment of City Council 
Members to the City and External Boards, Committees and Commissions for Fiscal Year 2015-16. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Strawser to disband the Park & Recreation Committee. 
(Approved 3 – 2, Noes Ray, Andersen) 
 
B.  Subject:  Proposal for Terrazzo Lights Pilot Project on Lower Commercial Street 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Bergman to authorize the Nevada City Chamber of Commerce 
proposal for Terrazzo Lights Pilot Project on Lower Commercial Street. 
(Approved – 3 – 2, Noes Ray, Andersen) 
 
C.  Subject:  Nevada City Strategic Investment Fund 
 
Minute Order:  City Manager to prepare draft Strategic Economic Investment Fund guidelines to support 
programs and projects that benefit the City’s long-term economic development goals. 
 
D.  Subject: Consideration of Supporting a Stage Host Application for the Amgen Tour of California 
 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Bergman to authorize a City contribution to offset local host 
expenses if Nevada City is selected as a Stage Host for The Amgen Tour of California in an amount to be 
determined by the City Council. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
E.  Subject:  Placement of Council-Requested Items on City Council Agendas 
 
Please refer to the meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevdacityca.gov. 
 
9.  CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
11.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Action:  Motion by Bergman, seconded by Andersen to adjourn. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
        _______________________________ 
        Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________  
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 

http://www.nevdacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  An Ordinance of the City of Nevada City adding Chapter 15.06 to Title 15 
of the Nevada City Municipal Code Relating to Expedited and Streamlined 
Permitting Procedures for Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Council take the following actions: Hold 
hearing, waive reading of entire ordinance, and approve first reading for adoption. 
 
CONTACT:  Hal DeGraw, Consulting City Attorney 
 
BACKGROUND:  Existing state law provides that it is the policy of the state to promote 
and encourage use of solar energy and requires cities and counties to 
administratively approve applications to install solar energy systems with 
nondiscretionary permits. In 2014, additional state legislation was passed declaring 
that rooftop solar energy to be a leading renewable energy technology that will help 
the state reach its Million Solar Roofs goal and requiring cities and counties to adopt 
an ordinance creating an expedited, streamlined permitting process for small 
residential rooftop solar energy systems. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Nevada City contracts with Nevada County for Building Department 
and building permit services and the City's adopted Building Standards largely 
incorporate the County's by reference. The County is in the process of adopting 
the required ordinance for small residential rooftop solar energy systems to comply 
with the State mandates and the proposed City ordinance mirrors the County 
ordinance. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Recommend finding ordinance is exempt 
from environmental review under CEQA pursuant to §§15378(b)(5), 15060(c)(2), and 
15268 as recited in proposed ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  County and City can adopt fees to cover cost of permit processing. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  Proposed Ordinance 2015-XX 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


ORDINANCE NO.  2015-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY ADDING CHAPTER 15.06 
TO TITLE 15 OF THE NEVADA CITY MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO 

EXPEDITED AND STREAMLINED PERMITTING PROCEDURES FOR SMALL 
RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 

 
 

WHEREAS, as set forth in Government Code Section 65850.5(a) it is the 
policy of the State of California that local agencies encourage the installation of 
solar energy systems by removing obstacles to, and minimizing the costs of, 
permitting such energy systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, as set forth in Government Code Section 65850.5(g), cities must 

adopt an ordinance on or before September 30, 2015 consistent with the goal and 
intent of subsection (a) that creates an expedited and streamlined permitting process 
for small residential rooftop solar energy systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance must substantially conform with the 

recommendations set forth in the most current version of the California Solar 
Permitting Guidebook, including the checklists and standard plans contained therein 
that, if complied with, require cities to approve the application and issue the applied-
for permits; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Nevada City recognizes that rooftop 

solar energy provides reliable and cost-effective energy for local residents and wishes 
to advance the use of clean, renewable solar energy by its citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Nevada City finds that it is in the 

interest of the health, welfare and safety of the people of Nevada City to provide an 
expedited permitting process to encourage the effective development of solar 
technology; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Nevada City finds that the 

following ordinance will have the effect of encouraging the installation of small 
residential solar energy systems and minimizing barriers, obstacles, and costs of 
obtaining permits for their installation: 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Nevada city as follows: 

 
SECTION I: 

 
Title 15 of the Nevada City Municipal Code is hereby amended to add a new Chapter 
15.06 adopted to read as set forth in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by such reference. 

 
 
 
 
 



 
SECTION II: 

 
The City Council finds and declares that this Ordinance is exempt from 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to the following categorical exemptions: Section 15378(b)(5) (as an 
organizational administrative governmental activity that will not result in direct 
or indirect physical changes to the environment); Section  15060(c)(2)  (it 
does not create a potential  for direct, indirect, or reasonably foreseeable 
physical changes in the environment); and Section 15268 (exempting ministerial 
actions such as approval of building permits and individual utility service connections). 

 
SECTION III: 

 
This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the adoption date thereof 
and within fifteen (15) days of the passage of this Ordinance, the City Clerk shall 
publish this Ordinance in the Union, a newspaper of general circulation. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City 

Council of Nevada City held this _ day of September, 2015 by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
Niel Locke, City 
Clerk 

 
Jennifer Ray, Mayor 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
TITLE:   Proposed Rezoning of Property located on Pello Lane, Nevada City, to add a 

“PD” Planned Development overlay to the existing “R2-AN-SC” zoning 
(Multiple-family/Annexed/Scenic Corridor) on said property, which contains 
2.36 acres (Second Reading)   

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Ordinance 2015-XX rezoning the property by adding the “PD” 
Planned Development overlay as approved by the Planning Commission in 2006. 
 
CONTACT:  Amy Wolfson, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The Planning Commission, in May of 2006 approved a tentative 
map, site plan and PD Planned Development Overlay for the “Pello Lane Project”; such project 
proposed an 11-lot residential subdivision with 15 residential units (11 primary and four second 
units).  The “PD” overlay as defined in Zoning Ordinance Section 17.68.230 allows for greater 
flexibility in the design of the development which would not otherwise be possible through strict 
interpretation of the zoning standards, and encourages design of well-planned facilities.  With the 
Pello Lane project, the development places the lots in the interior of the parcel, reduces the front 
and side yard setbacks on the residential lots, includes an extensive landscaping plan and 
provides a large portion of the lot remaining in open space. 
 
The owner of the property is pursuing recordation of the final map approved in 2006 and subject 
to several State of California extensions of time; the map is valid until May of 2017.  The Planning 
Commission, at their meeting of July 16, 2015 approved a revised architectural review application 
as to the design of the homes and approved the landscaping plan.   
 
With the nearing of the recordation of the final map, staff was unable to locate the mechanism 
which officially rezoned the property.  With the Council’s adoption of the ordinance rezoning the 
property by adding the “PD” overlay, the project can continue with the completion process. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None as the environmental process occurred with the 
2006 approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 City map location of property and Site Plan 
 Ordinance 2015-XX  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/








REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Proposed Utah Phillips Peace Bench 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss proposal and, if desired, refer to Planning Commission 
for review of options. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The Peace and Justice Center of Nevada County has 
proposed to honor the memory of labor organizer, poet and folk singer U. Utah Phillips, 
who lived as a Nevada County resident until his passing on May 23, 2008, with a bronze 
statue of his likeness, sitting on a bench in Nevada City. Three possible locations in 
downtown Nevada City have been identified by the Peace and Justice Center of 
Nevada County. 
 
The City of Nevada City does not have a formal plan for the siting of benches or types 
of benches in the City. Should the City Council have an interest in further exploring the 
idea, staff recommends the matter be referred to the Planning Commission for further 
study and a review of options.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 
 Utah Phillips Peace Bench Proposal 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/






REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
September 9, 2015      www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Update on State and Local Transportation Infrastructure Funding 
Discussions 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  In mid-June, Governor Brown called for a Special 
Session of the California Legislature to address critical state and local transportation 
infrastructure needs. Since June, both the Assembly and Senate have held information 
hearings on transportation issues.  
 
According to the American Society of Civil Engineer’s 68% of California’s roads are in 
“poor” or “mediocre” condition, putting California behind 43 other states in road 
condition. Further, the median age of the approximately 13,000 state-owned bridges is 
43 years old, and at least 500 of these bridges, including Nevada City’s Nevada Street 
Bridge over Deer Creek, require major repair or rehabilitation. As the fuel efficiency of 
vehicles increases, the sale of fuel will continue to decrease per capita reducing the 
revenue generated by the state’s 18 cent per gallon flat tax that is available for 
transportation projects.  
 
Overcoming funding deficiencies in regular road maintenance becomes increasingly 
challenging because the cost of deferred maintenance compounds over time. This is 
precisely one the reasons Nevada City voters took matters into their own hands in 2006 
with the passage of Measure S. Since approval, Nevada City has invested more than 
$400,000 annually in local streets, vastly improving the quality of the City’s 
transportation infrastructure.   
 
Since the State’s Special Session was called, more than 20 transportation funding bills 
have been introduced. However, discussions are primarily focusing on the four 
proposals outlined below.  
 

1. Assembly Speaker Toni Atkins Proposal 
• $2 billion per year over the next five years, starting in 2015/16 
• $1 billion per year by returning truck weight fees to transportation instead of 

using them to repay general obligation debt 
• $200 million per year for transportation funding by accelerating repayment of 

transportation loans 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


• $800 million per year in new net funds for transportation by establishing a 
new Road User Charge 
 

2. Senator Jim Beall’s Proposal, SBX1 1 
• Raises approximately $4.3 billion annually via 12 cent per gallon increase on 

gas a diesel 
• Increases annual vehicle registration fees by $35 
• Increases vehicle license fees by 1% 
• Implements a $100 annual fee for zero-emission vehicles 
• All revenue would be dedicated to road and bridge projects and shared 50/50 

between the state and cities/counties 
 

3. Assembly Republican Proposal 
• Nine-point $6.6 billion plan to fund transportation infrastructure with existing 

resources 
o 6 Existing Funds  

1. Reprogram 40% of funds in California’s Cap & Trade 
program generating $1 billion annually 

2. Existing funds from Vehicle Weight Fees generating $1 
billion annually 

3. Invest half of Governor’s million strategic growth fund into 
shovel-read road projects ($200 million) 

4. Eliminate redundancies at Caltrans ($500 million) 
5. Eliminate and capture savings from vacant state positions 

($685 million) 
6. Make a formal commitment in State General Fund to fund 

transportation ($1 billion annually) 
o 3 Policy Changes 

7. CEQA Relief for Highway Projects 
8. Foster Public-Private Partnerships for transportation projects 
9. Restore independence of the California Transportation 

Commission 
 

4. Local Coalition Proposal – 7 Principles (Local governments, business, labor 
and transportation advocates) 
• Make a significant investment in transportation infrastructure 
• Focus on maintaining an rehabilitation the current system 
• Invest a portion of diesel tax and/or cap-and-trade revenue to high-priority 

goods movement projects 
• Raise revenues across a broad range of options 
• Equal split between state and local projects 
• Strong accountability requirements to protect the taxpayers’ investment 
• Provide consistent annual funding levels 

 
On September 4, the League of California Cities reported a new $3.6 billion 
transportation funding proposal has been developed by legislative leadership in 



consultation with the Fix Our Roads coalition and the Governor’s office. This proposal 
provides less population based funding than previous proposals (estimated at $49,997 
for Nevada City) and includes some competitive grants and transit funding. An outline of 
the proposed Transportation Package is attached to this report. Staff will continue to 
monitor transportation funding discussions. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There are a number of statewide transportation funding solutions 
that have the potential to increase local funding for City streets. 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 
 Fix Our Roads/Governor’s Office Transportation Package Proposal 

 



SOURCE: League of California Cities


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 09.09.2015
	WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2015
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	3A-1 SR 9-9-15 Supervisory Unit Amendment Superintendent
	3A-2 Side letter- New job classification-Public Works Superintendent
	City of Nevada City
	side letter No. 2 to Memorandum of Understanding

	3B-1 SR 9-9-15 CSO Full Time Uniform Allowance
	3B-2 Side Letter - CSO Full Time - Uniform Allowance
	City of Nevada City
	Amendment NO. 2 to Memorandum of Understanding

	3C-1 SR 9-9-15 Proposition 84 Grant Agreement Amendment
	3C-2 Proposition 84 IRWM Grant Agreement Amendment #1
	3D-1 Event Street Closure - Chinese New Year
	3D-1 Stf Rpt Special Event - Chinese New Year
	3D-2 Event Street Closure - Chinese New Year
	3E-2 Event Street Closure - Indeginous Peoples Day
	3E-2 Stf Rpt Special Event - Indigenious Peoples Day
	3F-Accounts Payables - June 2015
	3G-Fire Activity Reports - May, June, July, August 2015
	3H-1 Website Reconstruction
	3H-2 Nevada City CA Website Contract
	3I-Award of Providence Mine Remediation Project
	4A-Minutes 07.22.15.Draft Action Only
	4B-Minutes 08.26.15.Draft Action Only
	6A-1 Solar Rooftop Systems
	6A-2 Ord - 2015-XX - Solar Rooftop Systems
	ORDINANCE NO.  2015-XX

	7A-1 Pello Lane Rezoning
	7A-2 Pello Lane Attachments
	8A-1 Utah Phillips Peace Bench Proposal
	8A-2 Utah Phillips Attachment
	8B-1 Statewide Transportation Funding Update
	8B-2 Transportation Package Outline



